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THE STA TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Victoria F. Sheehan ^ William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council April 15, 2019

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with the Greater Derry-Salem
Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation, (Vendor 163348), Exeter, New Hampshire, for an
amount not to exceed $124,816.00 for coordinated transportation services for seniors and individuals
with disabilities, for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, effective upon approval by Governor
and Council. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2020.

FY 2020

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Proflts-Federal $ 124,816.00

EXPLANATION

Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation (CART) has been awarded
funding from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and
Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) program to provide expanded transportation services in the
Region 9 Greater Derry-Salem Regional Coordinating Council for Community Transportation (RCC)
service area. CART will act as the lead agency to ensure the provision of accessible demand response
transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities within the region, and will support
mobility management and strategic planning activities in cooperation with the Region 9 Greater Derry-
Salem Regional Coordinating Council for Community Transportation .

The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula based on regional
populations of residents over 65 and those between the ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individual
RCC was responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, and prioritization and then
submitting one regional application for eligible Section 5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency. Greater Derry-Salem Regional Coordinating Council for Community Transportation designated
CART as the lead agency for Region 9 and tasked CART with applying for Section 5310 RCC funds on

JOHN 0. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • PO. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: 603-271-2171 • FAX: 603-271-7025 • TDD ACCESS: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 • INTERNET: WWW.NHDOT.COM



behalf of Region 9. As required by FTA, all projects are identified in a locally developed coordinated
public transit-human services transportation plan.

CART, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the required non-federal
rnatching funds. In the event that federal funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2020
budget. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the
Department of Administrative Services' Office, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will
be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Attachments

Sincerely,

Victoria F. Shcehan

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Transportation

1.2 State Agency Address
John 0. Morton Building
7 Hazen Drive

PC Box 483

Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional
Transportation

1.4 Contractor Address

PC Box 1374

Londonderry, NH 03053

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-512-4456

1.6 Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916 072-

500575

1.7 Completion Date

06/30/2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$124,816

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Michelle Winters, Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-2468

1.11 Contractor ̂ gnalure 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

;mem: State of , County of O

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s^fj^^cuted this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

^  . cr <a . V

c: SEPT \\ c
=★: 03 :★ =
g  —2019 A'; £?

1.14 State Agei/y Signature
J-

Date:

1.15 Name aHC®fflWW'Bf3W 'A'^ency Signatory
Director

Aeronautics, Rail and Transit

16 ApproWl by thrN.H. fê artment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: O"- H ̂  ̂ 0.01^

I  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
•  itractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcreunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required. In which case

the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be perfonned at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Sfatc hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available. If ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 13 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State

I have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
puce.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to olTsct from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Emplo)^!^^ Opportunity"), as siipplemenied by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, temis and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable

laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corpo ation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perfoi m the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

T The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event

ol any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price

ich would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
iod from the date of such notice until such time as the State

detennines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Cohlractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that pui-pose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
o Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA

pter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. 'ITic Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, frotn and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, '
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination,of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
itractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer

iaentified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensalion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
. " licable renewal(s).thereof, which shall be attached and are

.'. ijorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensalion
premiums or for any other claim of benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Dei^ault. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AM ENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
h" the parties hereto and only after approval of such

ndment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual /'
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement

arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

'24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.'This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Scope of Services

EXHIBIT B Budget

EXHIBIT,C Special Provision

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

Federal Clauses

2 CFR Part 200

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Greater Derry-Salcm Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation

EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Contractor, Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation,
(hereinafter the "Contractor") will provide transportation ser\'ices as described in its
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and
individuals with Disabilities Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) grant application to
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and 1 ransit
(hereinafter "NHDOT"). The Contractor will serve as the lead agency for Region 9
Derry-Salem for FTA Section 5310 RCC funds to provide accessible transportation
services to seniors and individuals with disabilities in cooperation with the Region 9
Derry-Salem RCC. This project is for the time period July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020. The
Contractor's grant application is hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this
agreement. The Contractor agrees to provide all services indicated in the grant
application unless modified per this agreement.

2. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to this agreement:

A. Mobility management activities, and as applicable, transportation services,
subcontractors, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of those submitted
in the Contractor's 5310 RCC application or as subsequently modified by NHDOT
through written notification to the Contractor. Further amendments to mobility
management activities, transportation services, subcontractors, and/or maximum
reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as documented in official minutes, as
well as written approval from the Commissioner of the Department of Transportation
or his/her designee (hereinafter the "Commissioner").

B. All services provided shall conform to FTA Section 5310 guidelines. Per F1A
requirements, the Contractor shall be responsible for oversight of subrecipients and
contractors relative to FTA requirements.

C. The Contractor shall ensure the provision of ADA accessible services within the
region. Any marketing materials, brochures, and other service information shall
describe it as ADA accessible. It is acceptable for a subcontractor that does not utilize
accessible vehicles to contract with an accessible provider in order to meet this
requirement.

D. The Contractor must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of
ser\'ices throughout the contract period regardless of mobility management expenses
exceeding the maximum allowed to be reimbursed.



E. The Commissioner may require ihe Contractor to provide additional transportation
services or to reduce transportation services provided under this contract. Any
alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the
Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the alterations
within thirty (30) days unless another timeframe is agreed to by the Commissioner
and the Contractor.

F. Services shall last the entire contract period. As necessary, the Contractor shall
establish trip priorities to ensure funds are not expended prematurely.



EXHIBIT B

BUDGET

The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the federal
Transit Administration Section 5310 portion of the eligible project. Federal Funds are
granted as follows:

SFY 2020

FTA Section 5310

Contracted Services $107,456.00

Mobility' Management $17,360.00

Total FTA Section 5310 Funds $124,816.00

II. The Contractor may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting a monthly or
quarterly invoice for the total eligible expenses less a 20% agency match to the NIdDOT.
The invoice must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and statements from

service providers to support the request for matching funds. Mobility management costs
shall be itemized and include such information as required to support the request. The

Contractor will verify that reimbursement is for non-Medicaid eligible trips only.

III. NHDOT reserves the right to determine whether the expenses submitted are eligible for
reimbursement based on FTA guidelines, regulations, and statutes. The Contractor shall

keep all documentation related to expenses incurred in relation to this agreerhent for a
period of three,(3) years, shall make such documents available for inspection to NHDOT
upon reasonable notice, and shall ensure that all subrecipients and contractors do so as
well.



Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation

EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISION

Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation is not required to

have a Certificate of Good Standing because it is an established "public body" under

RSA 239-A:2



Section 239-A:2 Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation Established. Page 1 of 1

TITLE XX

TRANSPORTATION

CHAPTER 239-A

GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION (CART)

Section 239-A:2

239-A:2 Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportarion Established. - There is
hereby established a public body corporate and politic having a distinct legal existence separate from the state and not
constituting a department or agency of the state government to be knov-m as the greater Derry-Salem cooperative
alliance for regional transportation, also known as CART. Creation of this regional transit alliance is a key
recommendation of the greater Derry-Salem regional transportation plan, completed in 2003 by the Rockingham
planning commission, southem New Hampshire planning commission, and Nashua regional planning commission. The
public purpose of CART is to acquire, own, and operate or cause to be operated a regional public transportation system
serving the citizens of the CART region, which is the only urbanized area in the state of New Hampshire which lacks
regular transit service. Municipal participation in this regional system will be voluntary, though provision of transit
service to any individual municipality will be based on financial participation.

Source. 2005, 116:1, eff. Aug. 14. 2005.

litlp://www.gencourt.stale.nh.us/rsa/lilml/XX/239-A/239-A-2.htm 3/25/2015



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify' that GREATER DERRY-SALEM

COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION a New Hampshire State Chartered (Legislative) formed

to transact business.in New Hampshire on August 14, 2005.1 further certify that it has paid the fees required by law and has not

dissolved.

Business ID: 605605

Certificate Number: 0004475852

l&m

'W

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I St day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CARTR
Cooperative Alliance tor Regional Transportation

Chester ■ Derry • Hampstead • Londonderry • Salem

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Nathan Miller, the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative
Alliance for Reeional Transportation (CART), a regional transit agency established pursuant to
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 239-A), do hereby certify that at a meeting held
on April 12. 2019:

1. The Executive Committee of the CART Board of Directors authorized Board Chairman

George Sioras to execute any documents which may be necessary to effectuate the FT A
Section 5310 contract with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

for State Fiscal Year 2020;

2. This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner
whatsoever, and remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof; and

3. The following person has been appointed to, and now occupies, the office indicated
under item 1 above: George Sioras.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the Greater Derry-
Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation on this 12th day of April, 2019.

(Signature of Recording Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of RockinghamCounty ot KocKingnam . ̂  /1

On this day of I 2019, before m.e L\ \/<ryrK ^ 'Q the
undersigned officer, personally appeared, Nathan Miller who acknowledged him/herself
to be the Secretary of the CART Board of Directors . and that he/she, as such
Secretary . being so authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose

therein contained.

In witness whereof, I have set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public ^ My Commission Expires
(Official Seal) ^ SEPT %

=*•; 03 ;★=
^  2019 ^

^

P.O. Box 1374, Londonderry, NH 03053 ■ 603-458-6087



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/TYYY)

4/15/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate docs not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsemont(s).

PRODUCER License It AGRSiSO
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

CONTACT Jessica Thamm

Ko.e«.: (603)622-2855 wc.no.;(603) 622-2854

jthamm^larkinsurance.com

INSURERtSi AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Nautilus Ins Co

INSURED

Greater Derry Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional
Transportation CART
P.O. Box 1374

Londonderry, NH 03053

INSURER B Starstone National Insurance Co 25496

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWHAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
iNsn

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
/MM/DOrrYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DOTYYYYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR X NN947360 7/1/2018 7/1/2019

EACH OCCIIRRFNCF
J  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAI
DAMAGE TO RENTED ,  100,000

MED E.YP (.«nv one f<ert«nl
f  5,000

PERSONAL i ADV IN.IIIRY '
,  1,000,000

GEN1_ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
,  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 1 LOG
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO $  0
NON OWNDEO AUTO J  1,000,000

AUTOMODILC LIADIUrr
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa ari-Memt s

ANY AUTO

-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

-SC

BODILY INJURY (Per oertonl s

heduleo
TOS BODIl Y IN.IIIRY (Per acxidenli

WIOPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenil $

t

B

X

IIMRRFI t A I lAR

EXCESS UAB

X fYTlllR

CLAIMS-MADE B0894T182ALI 7/1/2018 7/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
^  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
,  4,000,000

DEO X RETENTIONS 0 *

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABJUTY ^ / n
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE j j

If yet, describe under
nFRCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

PER OTH-
RTATIITF FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT s

E.L DISEASE EA EMPLOYE^ s

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS'VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AdditiorMi Remark* Schedule, may beaHached If more »pac* i« required)
State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation is named as Additionally Covered Party relative to the grants between the State of NH and Greater
Derry-Salem CART in regards to the General Liability provided a written contract as such is in place.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Stato of Now Hampshiro
Oopartmont of Transportation
7 Hazon Orlvo, PC Box 483
Concord, NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Cdoperilivo Alliance (or ReQiooal tranaportstlcn

Chester • Derry • Hampstead * Londonderry • Salem

April 16, 2019

Paul Bennett

Bureau of Rail and Transit

NH Department of Transportation

John 0. Morton Building

7 Hazen Drive, PO Box 483

Concord, NH 03302-0483

Dear Ms. Bennett,

In regards to Section 15. Workers' Compensation of the Form P-37. the Greater Dcrry Salem

Cooperative Alliance fot Regional Tratisporlallon (CART) does not carry workers' compensation

insurance because It does not employ any personnel. Management services are contracted
through Manchester Transit Authority (MTA) and service delivery (scheduling, dispatching,
transportation services with CART vehicles) is contracted through Easter Seals NH as approved

by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Region I. Remaining FTA oversight functions are
provided by the Rockingham Planning Commission (RPC) and Southern NH Planning

Commission (SNHPC) which both sit on CART's Board of Directors.

An insurance certificate naming NHDOT as additionally insured on CART's General Liability

policy is attached here.

If I can answer any questions regarding CART's management structure or insurance coverages

please feel free to contact me at 603-6S8-0S1S or sbogle@rpc-nh.ore.

Sincerely

Scott Bogle O

CART Vice Chair & Acting Administrator

P.O. Box 1374, Londonderry, NH 03053 ■ 603-458-6087



Client#; 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

02/27/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
ELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: TMhe certificate holderls'an ADOmONAUNSU'^ED, th7p"oiicy(ies) mustlia^ ADCnTIONAU^^
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, Subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate docs not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

CONTACT
NAME;

}wc.''no.Exii: 855 874-0123 fA/c.Npi:
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE 1 NAIC«

INSURER A : PNlMNIpnIt Mpmnlqr lAturane* Ca. 11 8058
INSURED

Easter Seals NH, Inc.

555 Auburn Street

Manchester, NH 03103

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

tNSR
LTR

A"

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

addlIsubr
INSR iwvol POLICY NUM8ERTYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY EFF
tMM/DD/YYYSri

POLICY EXP
(MM/OO/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

I CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR
Professional Liab

GENT AGGRE^E LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY I JECT IJL' LOC
OTHER:

PHPK1866633 09/01/2018 09/01/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

'6AMAGeyo~ReNfEC)'
PREMISES (E8 0n<:e)

MED EXP (Any cxw perfon)

PERSONAL t AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$1 ,op_p,o_qp

$iqq,ppq_
}5,000

>1.000,000

>3,000,000

>3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1866629 09/01/2018 no/n-i /on-ia' COMBINED SINGLE LiMrrU9/U1/ZU1U IP.fieeidenn

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOE ONLY

MIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

s1,000,000
BODILY INJURY (Per per»on)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eaJdenit

UMBRELLA LIAB qcCUR

EXCESS LIAB | ! CLAIMS-MADE
PHUB643260 09/01/2018 09/01/2019

DEO i X| RETENTION >$1 OK

BACH OCCURRENCE >15.000.000

AGGREGATE >15:000,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY y , „
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERyEXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICERMEMBER EXIXUOED?
(Mandatory in NH) ' '
II yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

jPER
I STATUTE

OTH.

£fi_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

EDP PHPK1866633 09/01/2018 09/01/2019

P'S£ASE - POLICY LIMIT

$1,619,050

$500 Deductible

Special Form IncI Theft

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

'Supplemental Names*:Easter Seals ME, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum

Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc., & The Homemakers Health Services. The General Liability policy Includes a

Blanket Automatic Additional Insured Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of
Subrogation status to the Certificate Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement

between the named Insured and the certificate holder that requires such status, and only with regard to the

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

CART

ATTN: Mike Whitten

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Manchester Transit Authority

110 Elm Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Manchester NH 03101"

1
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

2/27/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such cndorscmcnt{s).

PRODUCER

Hays Con^anies

133 Federal Street, 4th Floor

Boston MA 02110

Moira Crosby

PHONE FAX
(AK: No):

AnfjBFss- "crosbydhayscompanies. com

INSURER(S) AFFOROING COVERAGE NAIC t

INSURER A The North River Insurance Comnanv 21105

INSURED
V

Easter Seals New Han^shire,Inc

555 Auburn'Street

Manchester NH 03103

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER r

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER;19-20 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

lADOL

twsoTYPE OF INSURANCE
sueR

WVD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
tuuvDOfYYyy)

POLICY EXP
tUM/DorrrtY)

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LlABILfTV

CLAIMS-MADE □ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE to RENTED
PREMISES IEh occtifTfineril

MED EXP (Any one petson)

PERSONAL I AOV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q JCCT im LOG
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE LMDtLITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
t£a atcideniT

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Pef potion)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Pot acoOorM)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pet accident)

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LtABILfTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERAblEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
II yas. doicribe under
OLSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y PER
STATUTE

I OTH-
I ER

□
E-L EACH ACCIOCNT 1,000,000

40S-731BS2-9 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,OOP,OOP

E-L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,OOP.OOP

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be a(tact>ed il more space Is required)
Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

CART
Manchester Transit Authority
ATTN: Mike Whitten
110 Elm Street
Manchester, NH 03101

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/MCROSB

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)
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The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



-hove referenced on behait oT the named insured. The General Liability policy contains a special
" dorscment

with "Primary and Non-Contributory" wording.

CART is named as Additional Insured with respect to the Commercial Automobile Liability.

2016 Dodge Grand Caravan VAN VIN# 2C7WDGBG4GR262298 NH;
Coverages - Liability: ; Med. Pay: 5,000; Uninsured Motorist
/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist: /1,000,000; Comprehensive;

2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2009 Chevy Savana 1 Ton Arboc MINI VIN#
1GBJG31K191156058 NH; Coverages - Liability: ; PIP:; Med. Pay:

5,000; Uninsured Motorist/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist:
/1,000,000; Comprehensive: 2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2012 Chevrolet Express Cutaway Bus MINI VIN#
1GB3G3BG4C1114137 NH; Coverages - Liability: ; PIP:; Med. Pay:

5,000; Uninsured Motorist/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist:

/1,000,000; Comprehensive: 2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2009 Chevy Savana 1 Ton ARBOC MINI VIN#
1GBJG31K491156443 NH; Coverages - Liability: ; PIP:; Med. Pay:

5,000; Uninsured Motorist /1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist:
/1,000,000; Comprehensive: 2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2018 Ford E-450 VAN VIN# 1FDFE4FS8JDC06376 NH;

Coverages - Liability: ; Med. Pay: 5,000; Uninsured Motorist

/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist: /1,000,000; Comprehensive:

2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2018 Ford E-450 VAN VIN# 1FDEE3F$1JOC07519 NH;

Coverages • Liability: ; Med. Pay: 5,000; Uninsured Motorist
/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist: /1,000,000; Comprehensive:

2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

2018 Ford E-450 VAN VIN# 1FDFE4FS5JDC08232 NH;

' Covera9es"-"Liability:';'Med'. Pay: 5,000;"Uninsured Motorist *—
/1,000,000; Underinsured Motorist: /1,000,000; Comprehensive:

2000 Ded.; Collision: 2000 Ded.; ACV

SAGITTA 25.3 (2016/03) 2 of 2
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Federal Clauses

FIv America Requirements - Applicability - all contracts involving transportation ot persons or property, by air between the U.S. and/or places
outside the U.S. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000). Contractor shall
comply with 49 USC 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with Genera! Services Administration regulations 41 CFR 301-10. stating that recipients
and subrecipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use US Flag air carriers for US Govemmentfinanced international air travel and
transportation of their personal effects or property, to the eicteni such sen/ice is avaiiatile, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as
defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining
why service by a US flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of
compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor shall include the requirements of this section in ail subcontracts that may involve international air
transportation.

Charter Bus Requirements-Aoolicabilitv-Qperational Service Contracts. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($10,000 or
less, except for construction contracts over $2,000). Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5323(d) aryj (g) and 49 CFR 604. which stale that recipients and
subrecipients of FTA assistance may provide charter service for transportation projects tiiat uses equipment or facilities acquired with Federal assistance
authorized under the Federal transit laws (except as permitted by 49 CFR 604.2). or under 23 U.S.C. 133 or 142, only in compliance with those laws and
FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49 CFR part 604. the terms and conditions of which are irrcorporated herein by reference.

School Bus Requireinents - Aociiicabiiiiv - Operational Service Contracts. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($10,000 or
less, except for construction contracts over $2,000). Pursuant to 69 USC 5323(f) or (g) as amended by MAP-21, 23 USC 133, 23 USC 142. and 49 CFR
605. recipients and subrecipients of FTA assistance shall not er»gage in school bus operations exclusively for transportation of students and school
personnel in competition with private school bus operators unless qualified under specified exemptions. When opcratir>g exdusive school bus service under
an allowable exemption, recipients and subrecipients shall rx^t use federally funded equipment, vehicles, or facilities. Violations. If a Recipient or any Third
Party Participant that has operated school bus service in violation of FTA's School Bus laws and regulations, FTA may: (1) Require the Recipient or Third
Party Participant to take such remedial measures as FTA considers appropriate, or (2) Bar the Recipient or Third Party Participant from receiving Federal
transit funds.

Energy Conservation-Aoolicabilitv - aji Contracts except micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, stated in the slate energy conservation plan issued in
compliance with the Energy Policy S Conservation Act.

Access to Records and Reports-Applicabilitv - As Stiown below. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($10,000 or less,
except for construction contracts over $2,000) The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

1. Wfriere the purchaser is rtol a State but a local government and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 CFR
18.36(i}. contractor shall provide the purdiaser. the FTA. the US Comptroller General or their authorized representatives access to any tjooks.
documents, papers and contractor records v/hich are pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and
transcriptions. Contractor shall also, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17, provide authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO contractor, access to
contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 49 USC 5302(a) 1. which is receiving FTA assistance through the
programs described at 49 USC 5307. 5309 or 5311.

2. VNfriere the purchaser is a State and is an FTA redpient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 633.17. contractor shall provide
the purchaser, authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a
capilal project-defined at 49 USC 5302(a) I ; which receives FTA assistance through the programs-described at 49 USG-5307; 5309 or 5311.-By - -
definition, a capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $250,000.

3. VMiere the purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution
of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA redpient in accordance with 49 CFR
19.48, contractor shall provide the purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller General or their authorized representatives, access to any books,
documents, papers and record of the
contractor which are direcdy pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

4. Where a purchaser which is an FTA redpient or a subgrantee of FTA redpient in accordance with 49 USC 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital
project or improvement (defined at 49 USC 5302(a) 1) through other than competitive bidding, contractor shall make available records related to the
contract to the purchaser, the Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the
purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably
needed.

6. Contractor shall maintain all txx)ks. records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of rvat less than three (3) years after the
date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of tliis contract, in
which case contractor agrees to maintain same until the redpient, FTA Administrator, US Comptroller General, or any of their authorized
representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Re: 49 CFR I8.39(i)(il).

FTA does not require the indusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

Federal Changes-ADolicabilttv-AII Contracts except micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000) Contractor
shall comply with all applicable FTA regulations, polides, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the
Master Agreement tsetween the redpient and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the contract. Contractor's
failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of the contract.

Recycled Products-Applicabilitv-All contracts for items designated by the EPA. when the purchaser or contractor procures $10,000 or more of
one of these items during the current or previous fiscal year using Federal funds. The contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962). including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR
Part 247. and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

No Government Obligation to Third Patties-Aoplicabilitv-All contracts except micropurchases ($10.000 or less, except for construction
conlraas over $2,000)

(1) The redpient and contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the US Government in or approval of the solidtation
or award of tiie underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the US Government, the US Government is not a party to this contract and
shall not tie subject to any obligations or liat)ilities to the recipient, the contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to
any matter resulting from the underlying contract.

(2) Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. It is further agreed that the



* clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subconirador who will be subject to its provisions-

Pmqram Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts - Applicability - All contracts except micro-purchases
($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

(1) Contraaof acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Ad of 1986, as amended.
regulations. "Program Fraud Civil Remedies." 49 CFR 31. apply to its adions pertaining to this project. Upon execution of the
contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, n may make, or
the underlying contrad or FTA assisted projed for which this centred work is being performed. In addition to other
contractor further acknovrtedges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent daim, statement, sut^ttaf or cerlif^^w^ the
US Govemment reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Ad (1986) on conuador to the extent the US
Government deems appropriate.

(2) If contrador makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent daim, statement, submittal. or
contrad conneded with a projed that is financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance under the authonty of 49 USC
the right to impose the penalties of 18 USC 1001 and 49 USC 5307(n)(l) on contrador, to the extent the US Govemment deems ..
Contrador shall indude the above two dauses in each subcontrad financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. The dauses shall not be modified,
except to identify the subconirador who will be subjed to the provisions.



T<;>rmination - Applicability - All Contracts over $ 10.000, except contracts with nonprofit organizations and ir\stilutions of higher learning, where the
threshold is $250,000

a. Termination for Convenience (General Provision) the recipient may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to
contractor when it is in the recipient's best interest. Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on wotic performed
up to the time of termination. Contractor shall promptly submit its termination daim to the redpienL If contrador is in possession of any of the
redpient's property, contrador shall account for same, and dispose of it as the redpient direds.

b. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause) (General Provision) If contrador docs rwt deliver items in accordance with the contrad delivery schedule,
or. if the contrad is for services, and contrador fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if contractor fails to comply with any other
provisions of the contrad. the redpient may terminate this contrad for default Termir\ation shall t)e effeded by serving a notice of termination to
contractor settir»g forth the manr>er in which contrador is in default. Contrador shall only be paid the crontrad price for supplies delivered and accepted,
or for services perfomned in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the contrad. If it is later determirred by Cie redpient that contrador
had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of cofitrador, the
tedpient, after setting up a new delivery or perfonnance schedule, may allow contrador to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for
convenierice.

c. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) the recipient in its sole disaetion may.'in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow contrador an
appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defed. In such case, the notice of termination shall slate the time period in which cure is
permitted and other appropriate condifiorts If contrador fails to remedy to the redpienfs satisfadion the breach or default or atiy of the terms,
covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by contrador or written notice from the redpient setting forth the nature of
said breach or default, tfie redpient shall have the right to terminate the Contrad without any further obligation to contrador, Any such termination for
default shall not in any way operate to predude Uie redpient from also pursuing all available remedies against contractor and its sureties for said breadi
or default.

d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach in frie event that the redpient elects to waive its remedies for any breach by contrador of any covenant, term or
condition of this Contrad, su^ waiver by the redpient shall not limit its remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or
condition of this Contract.

e. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) the redpient. by written notice, may terminate this contrad. in wWe or in
part, when it is in the red;»eni's interest. If the contrad Is terminated, the redpient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this
contrad for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

f. Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) if contrador fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time spedfied in this contract
or any ewenslon or If the contrador falls to comply with any other provisions of this conliacf. the leupicni may terminate this conlrod for dcfoult. The
recipient ̂ sll terminate hy rteiivering in ryintrarinr a rmtir* nf terminatinn spedfying llie nature of default. Contrador shall only be paid the contrad
price for supplies delivered arxJ accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contrad. If. after
termir\aiicn for failure to fulfifl contrad obligations, it is determined that contrador was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the
same as if termination had been issued for the redpient's convenience.

g. Termination for Delault (Transportation Services) If contrador fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, induding delivery services,
within the time spedfied in this contrad or any extension or if contrador fails to comf^y with any other ptovisinn^ of this contrad. the redpient may
terminate this contrad lor defaulL The redpient shall terminate by delivering to contrador a notice of termination spedfying the riature of default.
Contrador shall only be paid the contrad price for serwces performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contrad.
If this controd is tcrminotcd v,^ilo contrador hoc poccoccion of the rodpiont goodc, contrador shall, as d'red'^ hy ihp redpienl, profftrt and preserve
the goods until surrendered to the redpient or itis agent. Contrador and the redpient shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of
goods. Failure to agree on an amount shall be resolved under the Dispute dause. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contrad obligations, it is
determined that contrador was not in default, the rights and oWig^tinnc nf the parfie-s shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the
redpient's convenience.

h. Termination for Default (Construction) If contrador refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its
completion within the time spedfied. or any extension, or fails to complete the work within this time, or if contrador fails to comply with any other
provisions of this contrad. the redpient may terminate this contrad for default, the redpient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of
termination spedfying the nature of default. In this event, the redpient may take over the work and compete it by contrad or othe^se, and may take
possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. Contractor and its sureties shall be
liable for any damage to the redpient resulting from conirador's refusal or failure to complete the work within spedfied time, whether or not contrador's
right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability indudes any increased costs incurred by the redpient in completing the wrork.
Contrador's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall contractor be charged with damages under this dause if;
1. Delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of contrador. Examples of
such causes indude: ads of God, acts of the redpient. ads of another contrador in the performance of a contrad with the redpient, epidemics,
quarantine restridions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
2. Contrador. within 10 days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the redpient in writing of the causes of delay. If in the redpient s judgment, delay is
excusable, the lime for compleling the work shall be extended. The redpient's judgment shall be final and condusive on the parties, but subjed to
appeal under the Disputes dauses.
If, after termination of contrador's right to proceed, it is determined that contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the nghts and
obligations of the parties will be the same as if termination liad been issued for the redpient's convenience.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default (Archiled 8 Engineering) the redpient may terminate this contrad in whole or in part, for the rMpienl s
convenience or because of contrador's failure to fulfill contrad obligations. The redpient shall terminate by delivering to {^tractor a notice of
termination spedfying the nature, extent, and effective dale of termination. Upon receipt of the notice, contrador shall (1) immediately discontinue all
services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the redpient all data, drawings, spedfications. reports, estimates, surnmaries,
and other information and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. If termination is for the redpient s
convenience, it shall make . . , , v < -i
an equitable adjustment in the contrad price but shall allow no antidpated profit on unperformed services. If termination is for contradors failure to fulfill
contrad obligations, the redpient may complete the work by contad or otherwise and contrador shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the
redpient. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contrad obligations, it is determined that contrador was not in default, the rights and obligafions of the
parties shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the redpient's convenierice.

j, Termination for Convenience or Default (Cost-Type Contrads) the redpient may terminate this contrad. or any portion of il. by serving a notice or
termination on contrador. The notice shall slate whether termination is for convenience of the redpient or for default of contrador. If termination is for
default, the notice shall slate the manner in which contrador has failed to perform the requirements of the contrad. Coritractor shall account for any
property in its possession paid for from funds received from the redpient, or property supplied to contrador by Ihe recipient. If termination is lor default,
the redpient may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid to contractor in proportion to the value, if any. of work performed up to the time
of termination, Contrador shall promptly submit its termination daim to the redpient and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid
to conlractof. If termination is for the redpient's convenience, contractor shall be paid its contrad dose-out costs, and a fee, if the contrad provided lor
payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination, If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the redpient



determines that contractor has an excusable reason lor not perlorming. such as strike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and ate br^ond the
control of contractor, the recipient, after setting up a new worlr schedule, may allow contraaor to continue wor1<, or treat the teiminaUon as a termination
for convcnierx».

fif^vftrnmept-Wide Debarment and Suspension fMnnprocuremenO - Applicability - Contracts over $25,000 The Redpieni agrees
to ifte following:

(1) tl will comply with Ihe requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subparl C. as adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulaticns at 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which
include the foDov/ing: (a) It will not enter into any arrangement to participate in the deveiopmeni or implementation of the Prqea wth any Thi^rd Party
Participant that is debarred or suspended except as authorized by: 1 U.S. DOT regulations. 'Nonprocuremeni Suspension and Debarment. 2 C.I-.K. part
1200 2 U S. OfVlB, •Guidelines to Agendes on Govemmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement).' 2 C.F.R, part 180, including any
ameridments thereto, and 3 Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12889. 'Debarment and Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 "We. b) It wll reviw the U.S^GSA
•System for Award Management," https://www.sam.90v. if required by U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200. arid {c)U vnll indude, ai^ r^uire each ̂
its Third Party Partidpants to indude. a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensunng that each lower tier Third Party Partiapant. 1 wil
comply with Federal debarment and suspension requirements, and 2 Reviews the 'System for Award Management" at h^://www sam^gov if n^ssary to
comoly with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200. and {2} If the Redpient suspends, debars, or takes any similar at^oii a ' .
Partidpant or indvidual, the Redpient win provide immediate vmnen notice to the: (a) FTA Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Reapient is located
or implements the , r-r. r-i. tr- 1
Project, (b) FTA Project Manager if the Project is administered Ijy an FTA Headquarters Office, or (c) FTA Chief Counsel.

rnntracts InvQlvina Federal Privacy Act Requirements - Applicability - When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol
enforcement activities for FT/\. and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply
to all contracts except micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2 000) ^ ̂  ^ =««
The following requirements apply to the (^Dntraclor and its employees thai administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any
contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other ^
requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974. 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the
Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Corntractw i^rstends
that the requirements of the Privacy Act, induding the dvil and criminal penalties for vidaUon of that Act. apply to those individuals involved, and that
failure to comply wilti Uielemis of Die Piivacy AU may iu:>ult in lei'mination of the uryJcrfying contract.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to indude these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal ^
Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

Civil Rights Requirements - AppHcabclity - All contracts except miao-purchases ($10,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
The following requirements apply to the urxferlying contract; e
The Redpient understands and agrees that ft must comply with applicable Federal dvU nghts laws and regiiations, and 9^^
except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing. Therefore, unless a Reapient or Program, induding an Indian Tnbe or the Tntol Transit
Program, is spedfically exempted from a dvil rights statute. FTA requires compliance with that dvil rights statute, induding compliance with equity in
service;

a Nondiscriminalion in Federal Public Transportation Programs. The Redpieni agrees to, and assures that each Third Party Partid[»nt will, comply
with Federal transit law, 49 U.S,C. 5 5332 (FTA's •Nondiscriminatinn" siatiitn)- (1) FTA-s*Nondiscnmination" statute prohibits diSCTmination on the tasis
of (a) Race (b) Color, (c) Religion, (d) National origin, (e) Sex. (f) Disability, (g) Age. or (h) Gender idenflty and (2) The FTA Nondi^immauoo statute s
prohibition against discrimination indudes: (a) Exdusion from partidpation, (b) Denial of program benefits, or (c) Di^mmation, induding di^iminalion
in employmeni or business opportunity. (3) Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing; (a) General. Follow: 1 The most recent edition of FTA
Circular 4702.1,'Title Vl Requirementsand Guidelines for Federal Transit ^
Administration Kecxpients.- to the extent consistent witn applicable Federal laws, teyulaliwis. ««i.d yuidance. and 2 Other ̂ i^icoblo Fodoral guidanco
that may be issued, but (b) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA does not require an Indian Tnbe to comply with FTA program-speafic
guidelines for Title VI when administering its projects funded under the Tribal Transft Program.

b. NondiscriminaUon - Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. The Redpieni agrees to. and assures that each Third Party Pahidfant will: (1) Prohibrt
discrimination based on: (a) Race, (b) Color, or (c) National origin, (2) Comply with: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Ad of 19W. as amended, 42 D S.C. §
2000d et seq, (b) U.S. DOT regulations, 'Nondiscriminalion in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation EffeduaUw of TiUe
VI of the Civil Rights Ad of 1964.' 49 C.F.R. part 21. and (c) Federal transit law. spedfically 49 U.S.C. § 5332. as slated in^e ̂ e^ding sedw a. and
(3) Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing, follow: (a) The most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, 'Tftie and TftleNA-DependCTt Guidelines
for Federal Transit /VJministralion Redeems.' to the extent consistent wth applicable Federal laws, regulations, and guidance, (b) U.S. DOJ,
•Guidelines for the enforcement of Title VI, Civil Rights Ad of 1964,' 28 C.F.R. § 50.3, and (c) Other applicable Federal guidance that may be issued,

c. Equal Employment Opportunity. (1) Federal Requirements and Guidance. The Redpient agrees to. and assures Par^artidpant will,
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and: (a) Comply with Title VII of the Ovil Rights of 1964 as
amended 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.. (b) Fadlitate compliance with Executive Order No. 11246. 'Equal Employment Opportunity as amend^ by
Executive Order No. 11375. 'Amendifig Executive Order No. 11246. Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity." 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note W Comply
with Federal transit law. spedfically 49 U.S.C. § 5332. as stated in section a. and (d) Comj^y with FTA Circular 4704 1 other applicable EEO
regulations, as provided in Federal guidance, induding laws and regulations prohibiting discnmination on the basis of disability, except as the Federal
Government determines otherwise in writing, (2) General, The Redpient agrees to: (a) Ensure that applicanis for employrnent are employed and
employees are treated during employment without discrimiiiation on the basis of their 1 Race, 2 Color, 3 Religion. 4 Sex, 5 Disability, 6 or
National origin, (b) Take affirmative action that indudes. but is not limited to: 1 Recruitment advertising. 2 Recruitment. 3 Employment, 4 Rates of pay, 5
Other forms of compensation. 6 Selection for training, induding apprenticeship. 7 Upgrading, 8 Transfers, 9 Demotions. 10 Layotts and 11
Terminations but (b) Indian Tribe. TiUe VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, exempts Indian Tnbes under the definition of Employer'. (3)
Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction /Vftivilies. In addition to the foregoing, when undertaking constiuctJon as reo^nized by
the U.S. fJepartment of Labor (U.S. DDL), the Redpient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each Third Party Paruapant. wth. (a) U.S
DDL regulations, 'Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor 41 C.F.R ̂ Pter 60 and
(b) Executive Order No. 11246,'Equal Emdoyment Opportunity.' as amended by Executive Order No. 11375,'Amending Executive Order No. 11246,
Rdating to Equal Employment Opportunity.' 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note.

d. Disadvaniaged Business Enterprise. To the extent authorized by applicable Federal law. the Redpient agrees to faaliiate. and assures that each
Third Party Partidpant will fadlitate. partidpation by small business concerns owned and controlled by soaally and econon^ally disadvaniaged
individuals also referred to as 'Disadvaniaged Business Enterprises" (DBEs). in the Project as follows: 1) Requirements. The Reapient agrees to
comply with; (a) Section 1101(b) of Map.21, 23 U.S.C. § 101 note, (b) U.S. DOT regulations, "Partiapation by D'Sadvaniaged Bu^ness Enterpn^
Department of Transportation Finandal Assistance Programs." 49 C.F.R. part 26. and (c) Federal transit law. speafic^iy 49
section a (2) Assurance As required by 49 C.F.R. § 26.13(a), (b) DBE Program Requirements. Reapients receiving planning, capital and/or operating



assistance that wll award prime third party contracts exceedirtg $250,000 in a Federal fiscal year must: 1 Have a DBE program meelir>g the
requirements ot 49 C.F.R. part 26, 2 Implement a DBE program approved by FTA. and 3 Establish an annual DBE participation goal, (c) Speaal
Requirements (or a Transh Vehicle Manufacturer, The Recipient understands arxJ agrees that each transit vehide manufacturer, as a condition of being
authorized to bid or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehide procurements, must certify that it has complied with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26.
(d) the Redpient provides assurance that; The Redpient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and
performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its OBE program or the requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 25. The Redpient shall
take all rrecessary and reasonable steps under 49 C.F.R. part 26 to ensure nondiscriminaiion in the award arxJ administration of DOT-assisted
contracts. The Redpient's DBE program, as required by 49 C.F.R. part 26 and as approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement.
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreemenL Upon notification to
the Redpient of its failure to carry out Hs approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided tor under 49 C.F.R. part 26 and may, in
appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Ad of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et
seq.. (2) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA exempts Indian tribes from the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise regulations at 49 C.F.R. part
26 under Map-2iand previous legislation,

e. Nondiscriminaiion on the Basis of Sex. The Redpient agrees to comply with Federal prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of sex, induding;
(1) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. as amended. 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.. (2) U.S. DOT regulations. 'NondiSCTimination on the Basis of
Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receivir^ Federal Fir\andal Assistance.* 49 C.F.R. part 25. and (3) Federal transit law. specifically 49 U.S.C. §
5332. as slated in section a.

f. Nondiscriminaiion on the Basis of Age. The Redpient agrees to comply with Federal prohibitions against discriminatiori on the basis of age, induding:
(1) The Age Discrimination in Employment Ad (ADEA). 29 U.S.C. §§ 621 - 634. which prohibits discrimination on the liasis of age. (2) U.S. Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC) regulations, 'Age Discrimination in Employment Ad." 29 C.F.R. part 1625. which implements the
ADEA. (3) The Discrimination Ad Of 1975. as amended. 42 U.S.C. § 6101 el seq.. which prohibits discrimination against individuals on the liasis of
age in the administration of programs or
activities receiving Federal funds. (4) U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, "Nondiscriminaiion on the Basis of Age in Programs or Adivities
•Receiving Fcdcrol Finondd AoaiatDnoc." 45 C.F.R. port 90. wfiioh implcmcntc tho Ago D'tccriminafion Ad of 1975, and (5) Federal trandt law.
spedfically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a.

g. Nondiscriminaiion on the Basis of Disability. The Redfwnt agrees to comply with the following Federal prohibrtions pertaining to discrimination
against seniors or individuals with disabilities: (1) Federal laws, induding: (a) Sedion 504 of the Refiabilitalion Ad of 1973. as amended. 29 U.S.C. §
794, which prohibrls discrimination on the basis of disability in the adminislration of federally funded programs or adivities. (b) The Americans with
Oisabiltties Ad of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 el seq.. which requires that accessible fadlilies and services be made available to
individuals »nih disabilities. 1 General. Trtles 1, It. and 111 of the ADA apply to FTA Redpients. but 2 Indian Trilies. Virile Titles 11 and ill of the ADA apply to
Indian Tribes, Title I of the ADA exempts Indian Tribes from the definition of "employer." (c) The Architedural Barriers Ad of 1968. as amended. 42
U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals with disabilities, (d) Federal transK law.
spedfically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, wtiich rww indodes disaWity as a prohibited basis for discrimination, and (e) Other applicable laws and amendments
pertaining to access for elderiy individuals or individuals with disabilities. (2) Federal regulations, induding: (a)'U.S. DOT regiiations, "Transportation
Services for Indiwduals with Disabilities (ADA).' 49 C.F.R. part 37. (b) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscriminaiion on the Basis of OiMbility in Programs
and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Finandal Assistance,* 49 C.F.R. part 27, (c) U.S. DOT regutatior^. 'Transportation for Individuals
with Disabilities: Passenger Vessels." 49 C.F.R. part 39. (d) Joint U.S. Archilectural and Transportation Barriers Compliarjce Board (U.S. ATBCB) and
U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans lAftth Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Spedfications for Transportation VehidPi.s.'..36 C.F.R..part.1.192.and..49.C.f:.R
part 38, (e) U.S. DOJ regulations. "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Usability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. part 35, (() U.S.
DOJ regulations. "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commerdal Fadlities," 28 C.F.R. part 36, (g) U.S.
EEOC, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. part 1630, (h) U.S. Federal
Communications Commission regulations. "Telecommunications Relay .Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for Persons with
Disabilities," 47 C.F.R, part 64. Subpart F, (i) U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards.* 36 C.F.R. part
1194. artd (j) PTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons." 49 C.F.R. part 609. ar>d (3) Other si^icable Federal dvil rights
arxl nortdiscrirnnation guidance,

h. Drug or Alcohol Abuse - Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections. The Redpient agrees to comply with the confidentiality and dvil rights
protections of: (1) The Drug Abuse Office arxl Treatment Act of 1972, as amended. 21 U.S.C. § 1101 el seq.. (2) The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse
and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970. as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4541 et seq., and (3) The Public Health Service Act, as
amended. 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd - 290dd-2,

i. Access to Services for People with Limited English Profidency. Except as the Federal Government determines othenwise in writing, the Redpient
agrees to prorrrate accessibility of public transportation services to people whose understanding of English is limited by following: 1) Executive Order
No. 13166. 'Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Profidency." August 11, 2000. 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and (2) U.S. DOT
Notice. 'DOT Policy Guidance Concerning Redpients' Responsibilities to Limited English Profidency (LEP) Persons." 70 Fed. Reg. 74087. December
14, 2005.

j. Other Nondiscrimination Laws. Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the Redpient agrees to; (1) Comj^y with other
applicable Federal nortdiscrimination laws and regulations, and (2) Follow Federal guidance prohibiting discnmination.

k. Remedies. Remedies for failure to comply with applicable Federal Civil Rights laws and Federal regulations may be enforced as provided in (hose
Federal laws or Federal regulations.

Transit Employee Protective Provisions-AoDlicabiiitv - Contracts for transit operations except micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, except
for construction contracts over $2,000)

Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements. The Redpient agrees that 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) requires employee protective arrangements to be
in place as a condition of award of FTA assistance made available or appropriated for FTA programs involving public transportation operations. U.S. DDL
recognizes the following categories of arrangements:

(1) U S DDL Certification. When its Project involves puWic transportation operations and is
financed with funding made available or appropriated for 49 U.S.C. §§ 5307, 5309. 5312, 5337, or 5339, as amended by Map-21, or former 49 U.S.C. §§
5308. 5309. 5312, or other provisions Of law as required by the Federal Government, U.S. DDL must provide a Certification of employee protective
arrangements before FTA may provide finandal assistance for the Project. Therefore, the Redpient understands and agrees, and assures that any Third
Party PartidpanI providing puWic transportation operations will agree, that: (a) it must cany out the Project as provided in its U.S. DDL Certification, which
contains the terms and conditions that U.S. DDL has determined to be fair and equitable to protect the inieiests of any employees affected ijy the Project,
(b) It must comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), and any future amendments thereto, (c) It vrilt follow the U.S. DDL guidelines, Guidelines, Section 5333(b).
Federal Transit Law." 29 C.F.R. part 215. except as U.S. DDL determines otherwise in writing, (d) It must comply with the temis and conditions of the U.S.



OOL certification of public transporiation employee protective arrangerronls for the Project, which certification 3= Vf
Agreement, induding; 1 Aftemative comparable arrangements U.S. DOL has specified for the Project. 2 Any revisions U.S. DDL has s^afi^ i(w^
Project or 3 Both and (e) It must comply with the following docurrrenis and provisions incorporated by reference in and ma^ part oi the Ut^Wying
Aoreerhent for the Project; 1 The U.S. DOL certification of public transportation employee proteaive arrangements for the Pr^ecL which certmca^ is
dated as identified on the Underlying Agreement. 2 The documents dted in that U.S. DOL certification fw the PrpjecL 3 Any alternative comparable
arrangements that U.S. DOL has spedfied for the Project, and 4 Any revisions that U.S. DOL has sp^fied for the Project u q r k
(2) Spedal VNferranty. \Mren its Project involves public transportation operations, and is financed with funding made available ot appropnated fo ^ S.C. §
5311 as amended by Map-21. for former 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in effect in FY 2012, or a previous fiscal year, or for section 3038 f
section 3039 of SAFETEA-LU U.S. DOL will provide a Spedal Warranty for those projects, indudmg projects under the Tnbal Transit P'^OQ/am. l neretore.
the Redpient understands and agrees, and assures that any Third Party Partidpant providing public transportation ferations w I agrw, that_ _
comply with Federal transit laws, spedfically 49 U.S.C, § 5333(b). (b) Follow the U.S. DOL guidelines -Guidelines Section f33(b). F^e al T
C F R part 215. excepi as U.S. OOL determines otherwise in writing, (c) It will comply with the U.S. DOL Speaal Warranty for its Project that is^sl wrrent
on the date when it executed the Undeilying Agreement, and documents dted therein, induding: 1 fipy alternative cornparable arrangements U.S^
spedfied for the ProjecL 2 Any revisions U.S. DOL has spedfied for the Project, or 3 Both, and (d) It will comply with tt^ documents and prowsior^s
^Snxxated by reference in and made part of the Underlying Agreement: 1 The U.S. DOL Spedal Warranty lor its Pr^^. 2
Warranty 3 Alternative comparable arrangements U.S. DOL spedfies for the ProjecL and 4 Any revisions that U.S. DDL has specified for the Proie«. and
(3) Special Arrangements for 49 U.S.C. § 5310 Projects. The Redpient understands and agrees, and assures that any
public transportation operations win agree, that although pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5310. and former 49 U.S.C. §§ 5310 or 5317. FTA has^iemined that it
was not -necessary or appropriate* to apply the conditions of 49 U.S.C, § 5333(b) to Subredpients paitidpating in the program to provide p^Wic
transportation for seniors (dderly individuals) and individuals with disabilities. FTA reserves the right to make the following exceptions, (a) FTA will make
case-by-case determinations of the applicability of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) for all transfers of funding authoriied
under title 23. United States Code (flex funds).' and (b) FTA reserves the right to make other exceptions as it deems appropnate.

nifiadvantarrerf Business Enterprise (DBE) Applicability - Contracts over $10.000 awarded on the basis of a bid or proposal offering to
use DBEs

a This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code ol Federal Regulations, Part 26. Partidpation by Dis^^taged ̂siness Ent^^s in
Department ot I ransportation Financial Assistance Programs. i ne national goal lor partidpation of Dlsadvantaged Business Enlerptises (DB^is
10%. The redpient's overall goal for OBE partidpation is listed elsewhere. If a separate contract goal for DEE partiapation has been established for
this procurement, it is listed etsewhere,

b. The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this conlracL The coniraaor shall cany
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this contract. Failure by the contractor to cany out inese
feouirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the muniapal
corporation deems appropriate. Each subcontract the contractor signs with a subcontractor must indude the assurance in this paragraph (see 49

c. If a'sejMrBle (Street goal has been established. Bidders/offerors are required to document sufiident DBE partidpation to meet these goals or,
alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so. as provided for in 49 CFR 26.53. ,

d. If no separate contract goal has been established, the successful bidder/otferor will be required to report its DBE partiapation obtained through race-
neutral means throughout the period of performance. in

e. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory perfoi^ance of that v^rtc no later than 30
days after the contraaoris receipt of payment for that work from the redpient. In addition, the contractor may not hold retatnage fr^ its
subcontractors or must return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subMntractof s work related .to ̂ is contract is
satisfactorily completed or must return any retainage payments to those subcontraaors within 30 days after incremental acceptance oi tnesubcontractor's work by the redpient and contractor's receipt of the partial retainage payment related to the subcontractors work.

f The contractor must promptly notify the redpient whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or tails to
complete its work and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount ol work, i he
contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and periorm that work through its own forces or ttiose of an affiliate without pnor wntten consent
of the redpienL

Prompt Payment - Applicability - All contracts except micro-purchoscs ($3,500 or locc, except
for construction contracts over $2,000)

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the
receipt of each payment the prime contract receives from the Redpient. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to eai^
subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractors work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement cf^ynnent froro me ̂ ve referenced
time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Redeem. This dause applies to both OBE and non-DBfc subcontracts.

Inrr^rnoration of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - Applicability - All contracts except micro-purchases ($10,000 or
less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The preceding provisions indude. in part certain Standard Terms 8 Conditions required by USOOT, whether or not expres^ stated m the preceding
contract provisions. AJI USDOTrequired contradual provisions, as staled in FTA Circular 4220.1F. are hereby incorporated by reference. An^ii^ to the
contrary herein notwithstanding. aH FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflid with other prowsions obtained in this
Agreement. The contrador shall not perform any acL fail to perform any acL or refuse to comply with any request that would cause the reapieni to be m
violation of FTA terms and conditions.

Drug & Alcohol Abuse and Testina-ADDlicabilitv-Operational service contracts except micro-purchases ($10,000 or less, excepi for
construction contracts over $2,000)

The Contractor agrees to comply with the following Federal substance abuse regulations: a, Drag-Free Workplace. U.S. DOT regulations. Drag-Free
Workplace Requirements (Grants)." 49 C.F.R. Part 32, that implements the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 as amended. 41 U.S.C. §§8103 e\ seq and
2 CFR part 182 b. Aicohd fî isuse and Prohibited Drug Use. FTA Regulations, "Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drag Use m Transit Operations.
49 use 5331 as amended by Map-21. 49 CFR part 40, 49 USC chapter 53, 49 CFR Part 655, to the extent applicable.



other

Full and Qnen Competition - in accordance with 49 U.S.C, % 5325(h) all procutement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that provides
full and open competition.

Prohibition Against Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications - Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal
statute or regulations, the contractor shall comply with the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any FTA assistance to support
procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

Coiifonnance with ITS National Architecture • Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, to the National Intelligent Transportation
Standards architecture as required by .. .. „
SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Section 512 note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice. "FTA National Architecture Pdicy on Transit Prqects, 66
Fed. Reg. 1455 etseq., January 8.2001, and any other implementirig directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise
in writing.

Access Reouirements for Persons with DisabHlties - Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d). stating Federd policy that the
elderly and persons with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation sen/ices and (acilities and that special efforts shall be
made in plannit^g and designir>g those services and facilities to implement that policy. Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec.
504 of the Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794. which prohiljits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, and the AmerKans >Mth Disabilities
Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended. 42 USC 12101 el seq.. which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities,
including any subsequent amendments thereto.

Notification of Federal Participation - To the extent required by law. in the announcement of any third party contract award for goods and
services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more, contractor shall speofy the amount of Federal assisiana to be
used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express that amount of Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of the third party
contract.

Interest of Members or Delegates to Congress - No members of, or delegates to. the US Congress shall be admitted to any share or part
of this contract nor to any benefit arising therefrom.

Ineligible Contractors and Subcontractors - Any name appearing upon the Comptroller Gencrafs list of ineligible contractors for federally-
assisted contracts shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor pursuant to this contract If contractor is on the Comptroller General s list of
ineligible contractors for federally financed or assisted construction, the redpieni shall carviel. terminate or suspend thus contract ;

Qther Contract Requirements - To tlie extent not inconsistent with the foregoing Federal requirements, this contract shall also include those
standard clauses attached hereto, and shall comply with the recipient's Procurement Guidelines, available upon request from the recipient

Comoiiance With Federal Regulations - Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following provisions: All USDOT-
reouir^ contractual provisions, as set fodh in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, FTA
mandated terms shall control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perfwm
any act or refuse lo comply with any grantee request that would cause the recipient to be in violation of FTA ternis and conditions. Ci^trada shall cornply
with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, induding. without limitation, those listed directly or inwporated ̂  referen« in tlie
Master Agreement between the recipient and FTA, as may be amended or promulgated from time to tiryie during the term of this contrad. Contrador s
failure

to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contrad.

Roal Property - Any contrad entered into shall contain the following provisions: Contrador shall at all times comply with all applicable statutes and
USDOT regulations, policies, procedures and directives governing the acquisition, use and disposal ol real property ii^uding, but not limited to, 49 CFR
18.31-18,34. 49 CFR 19,30-19.37, 49 CFR Part 24. 49 CFR 5326 as amended by Map-21, 49 CFR parl 18 or 19, 49 USC 5334. applicable FTA Circular
5010. and FTA Master Agreement, as they may be amended or promulgated during the term of this contrad. Contrador's failure to so comply shall
constitute a material breach of this contract

Arcnss to finrvices for Persons with Limited English Proficiency - To the extent applicable and except to the extent that FTA
determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, "Improving Access to Sennces fw Persons
with Limited English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C, § 2000d 1 note, and with the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, "DOT Guidance to Reapients on Speaal Language
Services lo Limited English Profident (LEP) Benefldaries." 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, December 14.2005.

Environm'=^rital Justice - Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the Redpient agrees lo promote environmental justice
bvloHowinq: (1) Executive Order No. 12898, "Federal Adions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populatioi^ and Uw-ln^e
February 11. 1994, 42 U.S.C. $ 4321 note, as wcB as fadlitsting compliance with that Executive Order, and (2) pOT Order D^artment of
TransDortation Adions To Address Environmental Jusfice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations. 62 Fed. Reg. 18377. ̂ nll 5. 1997, and (3)
The rtxjst recent and applicable edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, "Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for Federal Transit Administration Reapients,
August 15. 2012, to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws, regulations, and guidance,

Fnyirnfimental Protections - Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and resource conservation
reculrcmcnts for the projed. Some, but not all, of the major Federal laws that may affect the project inqludc: the National Environrnental Policy Mt of 1969;
the Clean Air Acf the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the comprehensive Environmental response. Compensation and LialJilily well penviSeXliovisions with Title 23 U.S.C.. and 49 U.C. chapter 53, The U.S. EPA, FHWA and other federal agenaes may ̂ ue other fe^ regulaUons
and riirenives that may affed the project. Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws and regulations in effed now or that become effective in
the future.



Gt^oaraphic Information and Related Soatial Data - (NOT APPLICABLE TO THE TRIBAL TRANSIT PROGRAM) Any project activities
involving spatial data or geographic information systems activtties financed with Federal assistance are required to be consist^! with ̂ e National Spatial
Data Infrastructure promulgated Ijy the Federal Geographic Data Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in wntirtg.

Geographic Preference - All project activities must be advertised without geographic preference, (except in A/E under
certain circumstances, preference for hiring veterans on transit construction projects and geographic-based hiring preferences as proposes to be amended •
in2CFR Part 1201 ).

Federal Single Audit Requirements - For State Administered Federally Aid Funded Projects Only Non Federal entities that expend $750,000 or
more in a year in Federal awards from all sources are required to comply with the Federal Single Audit Act provisions contained in U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular No. A 133. 'Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non Profit 0rgani2afens" (replaced with 2 CFR Part
200,'Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards' effective Deceml^ 2S. 2014 as applicaUe). Non
Federal entities that expend Federal awards from a sirt^e source may provide a program specific audit, as defirted in frie Circular. Non Federal entities that
expend less tf^an the amount above in a year in Federal awards from an sources are exempt from Federal audit requirements lor that year, except as rvoied
in Sec. 215 (a) of 0MB Circular A-133 Subpari S-Audits. records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the cognizant Federal
agency the New York State Department of Transportation, the New York Stale Comptrollers Office and the U.S. Governmental Accountaljility Office (GAO).
Non Federal entities are required to submit a copy of all audits, as described atx5ve, within 30 days of issuance of audit report, but no later than 9 months
after the end of the entity's fiscal year, to the New York State Department of Transportation. Contract Audit Bureau, 50 Wolf Road. Albany. NY 12232. Unless
a time extension has been grant^ by the cognizant Federal Agency and has been filed w/ith the New York State Department of Transportation s Contract
Audit Bureau, failure to comply witti ttie requirements of 0MB Circular A-133 may result in suspension or termination of Federal award payments. Catali^ of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Identification Number The municipal prefect sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards received
and expended, and the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and award identification shall include, as applicable, the CFDA
title and number, award rxjmber and
year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass through entity.

Veterans Preference - As provided by 49 U.S.C. 5325(k), to the extent practicable, the Recipient agrees and assures that each of Us Subredpients;
(1) Will give a hiring preference to veterans, as defined in 5 U.S.C. § 2108. who have the skills and abilities required to perform constnjction \work required
under a third party contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal assistance appropnaied or made available for 49 U.S.C. clupler 53,
and (2) Will not require an employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority,
female, an individual with a disability, or a former employee.

Safe Operation of Mgtor Vehicles . .
a. Seat Belt Use. The Recipient agrees to implement Executive Order No. 13043, 'Increasing Seat Befl Use in the United States.* Apnl 16,1997, 23 U.S.C. §
402 note, (62 Fed. Reg. 19217), by; (1) Adopting and promoting on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs (or its emplcyees and o^r personnel that
operate company-owned veNdes. company-rented vehides. or personally operated yehides. and (2) Induding a 'Seat Belt Use providon in each third
party agreement related to the Award, b. Distracted Driving, Induding Text Messaging While Driving, The Redpient agrees to comply swith. (1) Executive
Order No. 13513, 'Federal Leadership on Redudng Text Messaging \Mvle Driving." October 1. 2009, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note, (74 Fed. Reg. 51225), (2) U.S.
DOT Order 3902.10. 'Text Messaging While Driving.' (December 30, 2009, and (3) The following U.S. DOT Special Provision pertainir^ to Kstrac^
Driving: (a) Safety. The Redpient agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety polides to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, induding polides
to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehide the driver owns or rents, a vehide Redpient owns,
leases, or rents, or a privately-owried vehide when on official business in connection with the Award, or wtien performing any work for or on beh^f of the
Award, (b) Redpient Size. The Redpient agrees to conduct workplace safety iniUatives in a manner commensurate wlh its size, su^ as establishing new
rules and programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, re-evaluating the existing programs to prohitA text messaging while driving, and prwding
education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with lexting while driving, and (c) Extension of Provision. The
Redpient agrees to irKlude the preceding Special Provision of section 34.b(3)(a) - (b) of this Master Agreement in its third party agreements, and encourage
its Third Party Partidpants to comply with this Spcdal Provision, and indude this Spedal Provision in each third party subagreement at each tier supported
with federal assistance.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Identification Number - The munidpal project sponsor is required to identify in
its accounts all Federal awards received and expended, and the Federal programs under which they were received: Federal program and award ^
identification sliall indude, as applicable, the CFDA tide and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass through
entity.

The CFDA number for the Federal Transit Administration - Nonurbanlzed Area Formula (Section 5311) is 20.509. A Redpient
covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 0MB Circular A-133, 'Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
(replaced with 2 CFR Part 200,'UnifofTn Adrranistrative Requirements, Cost Prindples. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards" effe^ve December 26,
2014 as applicable) agrees to separately identify the expenditures for Federal awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) and the Data Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by QMS Circular A-133. The Redpient agrees to accomplish this by identifying
expenditures for Federal awards made under (Recovery Act separately on the SEFA, and as separate rows under Item 9 of Part 111 on the SF-SAC by CFDA
number, and indusion of the prefix "ARfRA" in identifying the name of the Federal program on the SEFA and as the first characters in ttem 9d of Part 111 on the
SF-SAC.

Organizational Conflicts of Interest - The Redpient agrees that it will not enter Into a procurement that involves a real or apparent
organizational conflict of interest described as follows:.(1) When It Occurs. An organizational conflia of interest occurs when the Project vk«fk, without
appropriate restrictions on certain future activities, results in an unfair competitive advantage; (a) To that Third Party Partidpani or another Third Party
Partidpant performing the Project work, and (b) That impairs that Third Party Partidpant s objectivity in performing the Proj^ work, or (2) Other. An
organizational conflicl of interest may involve other situations resulting in fundamentally unfair competitive conditions, (3) Disdosure Requirements.
Consistent with FTA polides, the Redfxenl most disclose to FTA, and each of its Subredpients must disdose to the Redpi^t (a) Ariy instances of
organizational conflict of interest, or (b) Violations of federal criminal law. involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal award,
and (4) Failure to Disclose. Failure to make required disdosures can result in remedies for noncompliance. induding debarmenl or suspension.



Federal Certifications

GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

Instructions for Certification: Bv signing and submlning this bid or proposal, the prospective lower ̂er participant is providing the signed
certification set out below. ,

1, It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations. 'Nonprocuremenl Suspension and Debarment, 2 CFR part 1200, which
adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. 0MB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement),'2 CFR part 180,

2. To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Prindpals and Subredpients at the first tier

a. Are eligible to partidpate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency and are not presently;

1, Debarred

2, Suspended

3, Proposed for debarment

A. Dedared ineligible

5. VduiHarily exduded

6. Disqualified

b. Its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest application or proposal been convicted of or had a dvil judgment
rendered against any of them for;

1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection wnth obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a puttie (Federal, State,
or local) transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

2. Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or

3. Proposed for debarment commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making any
false statement, or receiving stolen property

c. It is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with
commission of any of the offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default within a three-year period
preceding this Certification,

e. If. at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that
information to FTA

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier sut>contract under its Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part
1200 and 2 CFR part 180 if it;

1. Equals or exceeds $25,000.

2. Is for audit services, or

3. Requires the,consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor;

1. Comply and fadlitale compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200. and

2. Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently dedared by any Federal department or agency to be.

a. Debarred from participation in its federally funded Project,

b. Suspended from partidpation in its federally funded Project,

c. Proposed for debarment from partidpation in its federally funded Project,

d. Dedared ineligible to partidpate in its federally funded Project.

e. Voluntarily exduded from partidpation in its federally funded Project, or

f. Disqualified from partidpation in its federally funded Project, and '

3 It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA'sTrAMS-Web or the Signature Page if it or any of its prindpals,
induding any of its first tier Subredpients or its Third Party Partidpants at a lower tier, is unable to certify compliance with the preceding
statements in this Certification Group.

Certification

Signature of Authorized Offidal
Name and Title of Contractor's AumotiteaOffidal Lr- S

/IP-
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Contract Agreement Revised 1/11/19

Contract Agreement
New Hampshire Department of Transportation

And

Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation

The Subrecipient, Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation, shall
comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most
recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and
Assurances.

This subaward includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

Subrecipient Name: Greater Derrj'-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation

Subrecipient DUNS number: 809736197

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 138S-2019-2

Type of Federal Award: Section 5310 RCC Federal Award Date: 7/1/19

Period of Performance:

FFY: 2020 Start Date: 7/1/19 End Date: 6/30/20

Federal Funds Obligated by the Action:

For SFY: 2020 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $124,816.00

Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to Subrecipient:

For SFY: 2020 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $124,816.00

Total Amount of Federal Award:

Section: 5310 RCC Amount; $ 124,816.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.513 FFY: 2020

Federal Award Proiect Description: Funding to enhance mobility for seniors and individuals with

disabilities (As required to he responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFAFT))

Is this award for research and development: No

Provide the indirect cost rate for the federal award: 10%

Name of Federal Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration
Grantee: New Hampshire Department of Transportation

Contact Information for Awarding Official:

Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P. 0. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI. OH 45201

DEPARTMENT- OF THE -TREASURY

Date;
JAN 2 1 2009

GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE
ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION
C/O KATHERINE B MILLER
225 WATER STREET
EXETER, NH 03833

Employer Identification Number:
06-1780960
OLN:

17053221336008
Contact Person: .
RAMACMANDP^AN MANOHAR
Contact Telephone Number:
C877) 829-5500

Accounting Period fndlng:
September 30

Public Charity Status:
17d(b)(l)(A)(vi)

Form 990-Required:.
Yes

Effective Date of Exemption:
August 14, 2005

Contribution Decjuctibilit-y:
Yes

Addendum Applies:
No

10# 31344

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exemot status we have determined that you are exempt from-Federal income tax
under section 5Ql(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055; ^lOG
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your qxempt status, you should keep It 1n your permanent records.

Organizations exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the Code are further classified
as either oubllo charlties or-pr-tvate-foundations.- We determitied that you "are
a public charity under the Code sectlon(s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

Please see enclosed-.Publicatlon 4221-PC.-Compliance Gulde-for 501(c)(3) Public
Charities. -for ^ome helpful information about your responsibilities as an
exeiTipt organization.

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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GREATER OERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE

We have sent a copy of this letter to your representative as indicated in your
power of attorney'.

Sincerely,

Robert Choi
Director. Exempt Organizations
Rulings and-Agreements

Enclosures: Publication 4221-PC

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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To the Board of Directors of January 2i, ̂ ui8^ter Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation
have audited thp

Cooperative Alliance for financial statements of the r
the statements of fin ■ "'"tansportation (a nonorofit ■ f^erry-Salem
"atements of act^t September 30«"apc,a, statement " Vears then "endeTa^d'tbe^iel'a.r

relevant to the n ™Ptementation and States

--.,misstatemeo~;::erfr:rr "
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to exoresc

«.rsrv:.:- 'X-ir=.;■■•'»»■«.Obtain reasonable assurance ^'^^"bards require that we plan and ^ the
misstatement. the financial statements arfj e^f«'c rree from material

statements whetht d of the risks of mater^r ^ ^^ditor's-H-ders intrrna 'con r'i -Lnri "nancia,
jvt7 " .=:r.r ~-r:—,r7i=SFi;



evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional
Transportation as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The schedules of functional expenses on pages 11 and 12 are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the

financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to

the financial statements as a whole.

F. G. BRI6GS, JR., CPA

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

ASSETS

2017 2016

Current Assets

Cash

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

S 72,761

160,932

5,263

S 73,527

108,783

6,002

Total Current Assets 238,956 188,312

Property

Vel'M.'les

Equipment

Accumulated depreciation

456,680

3,477

(431,489)

45C,G80

3,477

(418,643)

Ptupci ly, NcL 2S,GG8 •11,514

TOTAL ASSETS $

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

267,624

2017

$ 229,826

2016

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

S 95,698 $ 53,514

42,741

Total Current Liabilities 95,698 96,255

Net Assets

Unrestricted 171,926 133,571

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 267,624 S 229,826

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF AaiVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Municipalities

FTA funds passed through State of NH

FTA funds - operating

FTA funds - capital

Farebox revenue

Ride card revenue

Partner agency match

Advertising

Contributions

142,435

125,783

278,992

15,677

2,276

24,383

59,293

hx

125,989

91,266

267,393

31,378

.11,676

2,890

28,942

60,293

6,669

Total Revenues and Other Support 648,907 626,406

EXPENSES

Program

General management

Fundraising

Total Expenses

608,352

2,200

610,552

553,239

12,098

7,288

572,625

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 38,355 53,871

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

133,571

171,926

79,700

133,571

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

Cash Flows From (For) Operating Activities

Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase),decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in secuhty'deposits

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows For Investing Activities

Payments tor the purchase of property

Net cash used for investing activities

38,355

12,846

(52,149)

739

42,184

(42,741)

(39,121)

(766)

53,871

18,644

(3,751)

(1,193)

475

8,391

2,500

(3,359)

21,707

75,578

(39,223)

(39,223)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and equivalents, end of year

(766)

73,527

72,761

36,355

37,172

73,527

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

Nature of Organization

Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation (the Organization) is a public
non-profit corporation and quasi-governmental subdivision of the State of New Hampshire that
promotes and provides safe, efficient, and reliable public transportation for participant communities
within the Greater Derry-Salem region; supporting independence and high quality of life for alt
residents of these communities.

The Organization derives its support from grants provided by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA),
the State of New Hampshire, and participating towns and private foundations; along with fare revenue
and income from the sale of advertising on vehicles.

NOTE 2; SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Organization prepares its financial statements using the accrual method of accounting, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC).

Financial ReportinR

Generally accepted accounting principles establishes standards for general purpose external financial
statements of not-for-profit organizations. Generally accepted accounting principles further requires
classification of net assets and its revenues, expenses, gains and losses into three categories, based on
the existence or absence of externally (donor) imposed restrictions. The categories, unrestricted,
temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets are defined as follows:

Unrestricted:

Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net assets may be
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted:

Net assets whose use is limited by law or donor imposed stipulations that will be fulfilled by either
the passage of time or by actions of the Organization.



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Permanently Restricted:

Reflects the historical cost of gifts {and in certain circumstances the earnings from those gifts),
subject to donor imposed stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to
produce income for general or specific purposes. The Organization has no permanently restricted
net assets.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Organization has analyzed its tax positions and has determined that there are no unrecognized tax
obligations to record.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Generally accepted accounting principles require the Organization to disclose estimated fair values for
its financial instruments. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those
instruments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are performed.

Property

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Costs for maintenance and repairs are charged against
operations. Renewals and betterments which materially extend the life of the assets are capitalized.
Depreciation is provided for using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets as follows:

Vehicles and equipment 5 years

Total depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 was $12,846 and
$18,644, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis.
Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited.



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of grant money that has been earned but not received from the funding
agency. Accounts receivable have been reviewed by management and are fully collectible as of
September 30, 2017 and 2016.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid investments

purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At September 30,
2017 and 2016, the Organization had no cash equivalents.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the

donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or for specific purposes
are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of

the restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is

received, the Organization reports the support as unrestricted.

Donated Services

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services as no objective basis

is available to measure the value of such services. The Board of Directors serve in a volunteer capacity

and receive no remuneration.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 3: DEFERRED REVENUE

Municipality funds received in advance are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue in

the period in which the related services are performed. Funds received in advance aggregated $- and
$42,741 as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The timing of the funds received is

dependent on the municipalities' fiscal year ends and may fluctuate from year to year as a result of
such timing.

NOTE 4: CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, approximately $278,992 (43%) and $298,771
(48%), respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from the Federal Transit Authority,

and $268,218 (41%) and $217,255 (35%), respectively, was received from state and local municipalities.

The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued support from these
departments.

NOTE 5; TRANSIT OPERATIONS AND BROKER MANAGER

Transportation services are performed through separate organizations and billed monthly for staffing,
maintenance, driver training, and drug and alcohol testing. The Organization primarily subcontracts
these services with Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Inc.

NOTE S: LEASED FACILITIES/COMMITMENTS

The administration office occupied by the Organization for its program is leased under an operating
lease. The lease term is annual. For the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the annual lease
expense for the office was $2,200 and $3,075, respectively. Beginning June 1, 2015, the Organization
entered into a five year lease agreement with the Town of Salem in the amount of $200 per month.



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOTE 6: LEASED FACILITIES/COMMITMENTS (continued)

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the lease are as follows:

Year ended September 30:

2018 2,400

2019 2,400

2020 1,600
$  6,400

NOTE 7: MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

On November 17, 2016, the Organization contracted with two New Hampshire planning commissions
to provide management of financial functions and technical asi»islaMcu. The cusl of managing both
operational and financial functions was $34,313 for the year ended September 30, 2017. One of the
commissions employs the Organization's Treasurer. Payments to this related party total $21,857.

NOTE 8: CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives funds under federal and state sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made in
compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. The
federal government also has an interest in equipment purchased with federal funds.

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position date,
but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or

transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of
financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial
statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions
that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management
has evaluated subsequent events through January 23, 2018, the date the financial statements were
available for issuance.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES



GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Program

General

Management Fundraising

2017

Total

EXPENSES

Broker manager - call center staff 103,296 -
103,296

Broker manager - facilities 11,273 -
11,273

Broker manager - management services 40,318 - 40,318

Broker manager - transit maintenance 40,397 - 40,397

Depreciation 12,846 - 12,846

Insurance 7,272 -
7,272

Marketing and advertising 18,317 - 18,317

Miscellaneous 1,280 -
1,280

Office supplies 135 - 135

Professional fees 48,788 - 48,788

Rent 2,200 2,200

Transit operations 322,598 - 322,598

Utilities 1,832 - 1,832

$  608,352 $ 2,200 $ 610,552

See Independent Auditors' Report
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GREATER DERRY-SALEM COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

EXPENSES

Brol<er manager - call center staff

Broker manager - facilities

Broker manager - management services

Broker manager - transit maintenance

Depreciation

Insurance

Marketing and advertising

Miscellaneous

Office supplies

Payroll taxes and benefits

Postage and printing

Professional fees

Rent

Salary

Transit operations

Utilities

Program

101,792

11,109

39,731

30,955

18,518

6,870

18,088

4,358

585

3,132

27,53-1

"  40,759

248,226

1,582

General

Management

/

Fundraising

2016

Total

126

624

121

3,075

8,152

1,437

416

5,435

101,792

11,109

39,731

30,955

18,644

6,870

19,525

4,358

585

4,172

121

27,534

3,075

54,346'

248,226

1,582

$  553,239 $ 12,098 $ 7,288 $ 572,625

See Independent Auditors' Report
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ATTACHMENT 12 - Greater Oorry-Salcm Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation (CART)
Board of Directors Roster - FY18

First

George

Scott

Nathan

Richard

Arthur

Martin

Last

Sioras

Bogle

Miller

Hartung

Rugg

Srugis

Nancy Michels

Andre Garron

Michelle Scott

Richard Tripp

Officer

Chairman

Vice Chair

Secretary

Treasurer

Rcorescntation

Derry

Rockingham Planning
Commission

Southern NH Planning
Commission

Hampstead

Londonderry

Londonderry

Londonden^

Salem

Chester

Derry

Address Committee

Executive

Executive

Executive .

Executive

Executive

(At Large)

Title

Community

Dev't Director

Sr. Transp.

Planner

Sr. Transp.

Planner

Citizen

Planning Board

Chair

SNHPC

Commissioner

Citizen

Community

Dev't Director

Citizen

Councilor

Phone

603-432-6100

X5477



SCOTT p. BOGLE

sbogle@rpc-nh.org

SUMMARY

Professional planner with expertise in expanding community transportation access, transit coordination,
transportation demand management, bicycle and pedestrian facility development, public engagement and cultural
resource management.

EXPERIENCE

Senior Transportation Planner Spring 2001-Present
Rockingham Planning Commission (RPC) Exeter, NH

• Provided technical assistance to communities on transit, transportation demand management, pedestrian
and bicycle facility and program development; including project planning and securing a range of federal,
state, local, and private sector monies for project implementation.

• Provided staff functions for the Rockingham Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPC)
• Worked at the state and regional levels on transit coordination issues, including managing development of a

regional transit agency/brokerage system for the Greater Derry-Salem area, and the TASC volunteer driver
program serving nine Seacoast communities.

• Administered the Greater Derry-Salem CART regional transit service, handling contractor oversight, service
planning and analysis, municipal and rider relations, and FTA grant development, reporting and compliance.

Project Manager/Graduate Fellow Fall 1999-Fall 2000
University of Oregon Community Planning Workshop (UO-CPW) Eugene, OR

Assistant Planner Summer 1998-Fall 1999

City of Eugene Planning & Development Department Eugene, OR

Education Specialist Fall 1991-Fall 1997
University of Hawaii Sea Grant Extension Service Honolulu, HI

Interpretive Ranger Spring-Fall 1991
Klondike Gold Rush National Historical Park Seattle, WA

EDUCATION

Brown University - A.B. in American Civilization (1990)

University of Oregon - MCRP in Community & Regional Planning; MS in Historic Preservation (2000)

SKILL SET & BOARD ENGAGEMENT

• Experience with federal, state, regional, and municipal transportation planning processes; project management,
public engagement processes, survey design and analysis, grant writing;

• NHDOT Complete Streets Advisory Committee; Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) Board;
Greater Derry-Salem Cooperative Alliance for Regional Transportation (CART) Board; TransportNH Advisory Board;
Endowment for Health Advisory Council; East Coast Greenway Alliance National Trails Council; United Way of the
Greater Seacoast Board 2005-2008, Transportation Assistance for Seacoast Citizens (TASC volunteer driver
program) Board 2006-2017.

• Leadership Seacoast Class of 2014; Hoffman-Haas Fellowship Program Mentor 2014



Michael Whitten

EXPERIENCE:

January 20JO lo present: Manchester Transit Authority: Executive Director

Have held the position of Executive Director since January' 2010. Responsible for all aspects of daily operations including ensuring
compliance with current C.B.A., on lime performance of all buses, safety/security concerns, grant administration, payroll supervision,
budget preparation and presentation to the school contract negotiations, Triennial Review preparation, daily interaction with
ATU Local 717, ARRA project coordination, and labor negotiations in advance of expiration of current C.B.A. Successes include
increased ridership, implementation of 5 new fixed routes including first ever commuter routes to Concord and Nashua, launch of the
Green DASH service, launch of seasonal routes to Hampton Beach and Deerfield Fair, launch 6f-area community shuttles in
Goffstown and Hooksett, as well as significant growth in school side revenues and fleet. Have also achieved vastly improved relations
with the local Union, seeing grievance drop by 90% over 8 years to a point where we now only receive -5 a year.

January 2008 to January 2010: First Transit-Manchester Transit Autlwrity: Operations Planning Manager / Assist. Director

Served as primai-y liaison to Manchester School District with regard to yellow school bus routes and took an active role in school bus
routing and planning throughout the year. Coordinated SlepSavcr program, MTA's demand response ADA service. Conducted
system wide StcpSaver review and authored resulting new policies. Developed a Travel Training program and continue to teach
prospective riders in groups ranging from I -50 people. Chair the accident review committee. Authored a successful grant for
$238,000 in EPA funding through the 2008 NEDC grant program. Monitor ridership statistics through GFI fare box system and
present to the Board of Commissioners monthly.

December 2000 to July 2007: U-Mass Transit Services: Training Supervisor

Served in various levels of increasing responsibility including operator, trainer, dispatcher, driver supervisor, and ended with 2 years
as the training supervisor. I supervised a staff of approximately 25 trainers and hired 65-75 hew drivers a year. Each new driver was
trained to obtain a class B CDL and shown how to operate our buses safely and with a passenger-oriented mindset. 1 was responsible
for handling all aspects ofthe training department payroll and fee reimbursement system. 1 ensured each employee maintained
compliance with all federal, state, and university procedures including drug testing awareness, a dmg and alcohol program, and motor
vehicle anti-idling policy. I continuously monitored both drivers and trainers to ensure that they were practicing safe driving
techniques on the road.

1 have also held management positions with the following companies.
•  French King Entertainment Center: Erving, MA- 3 years
•  The Winner In You (Avon Products): Wearer, NH- periodically over 8 years

•  Relish (restaurant): Edinburgh, Scotland- 6 months
•  Martha's Vineyard Transit Authority- Seasonal Training Coordinator, 2 years (summers)

EDUCATION:

May 2000 University of Massachusetts Amherst, MA

Bachelor's Degree Business Management 3.7 GPA: Dual concentrations in Human Resources and Operations Management.

June 2009 Community Transportation Association of America

Passenger Service and Safely program: Certified Trainer

REFERENCES:

References from any of the other above companies arc available upon request.


